MINUTES of MEETING of OBAN LORN & THE ISLES AREA COMMITTEE held in the CORRAN HALLS, OBAN on WEDNESDAY, 10 APRIL 2013

Present: Councillor Roddy McCuish (Chair)

Councillor Mary-Jean Devon
Councillor Fred Hall

Councillor Iain Angus MacDonald

Councillor Alistair MacDougall

Councillor Louise Glen-Lee Councillor Duncan MacIntyre Councillor Elaine Robertson

Also Present:

Malcolm MacFadyen, Head of Facility Services Peter Bain, Head Teacher of Oban High School Shirley MacLeod, Area Governance Manager Martin Gorringe, Marine Operations Manager

Helen Ford, CHORD Project Manager

Bill Brackenridge, Chair of Adult Protection Committee

David Clements, IOD Programme Manager Janice Ritchie, Area Children's Manager Stewart Clark, Contracts Manager

Callum Robertson, Contracts Manager

Laura MacDonald, Community Development Officer Moya Ingram, Strategic Transportation Officer

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Roddy McCuish declared a non financial interest in relation to the Third Sector Grant Application on OASIS which was dealt with at item 13 of this Minute, because he is a Member of the Board.

3. MINUTES

(a) MINUTES OF THE OBAN, LORN AND THE ISLES AREA COMMITTEE HELD ON 13 FEBRUARY 2013

The Minutes of the Meeting of 13th February were approved as a correct record. In response to a query on page 2 at item 4(b), the Area Governance Manager advised she had previously written to Neil MacIntyre regarding the £400K advising that this was not a grant but was a Service Level Agreement.

(b) MINUTES OF THE OBAN, LORN AND THE ISLES AREA COMMITTEE HELD ON 12 MARCH 2013

The Minutes of the Meeting of 12th March were approved as a correct record.

(c) MINUTES OF THE OBAN COMMON GOOD FUND MEETING ON 13 FEBRUARY 2013 (FOR NOTING)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 13th February were noted.

(d) MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COMMON GOOD FUND MEETING ON 1 MARCH 2013 (FOR NOTING)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 1st March were noted.

(e) MINUTES OF THE OBAN, LORN AND THE ISLES COMMUNITY SAFETY FORUM HELD ON 11 FEBRUARY 2013 (FOR NOTING)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 11th February were noted.

4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Neil MacIntyre asked the Committee when work would commence on Soroba Road? The Committee agreed to contact Neil MacIntyre with an answer before the next Area Committee.

Neil MacIntyre also congratulated the Council on the amount of Service Level Agreement given to Atlantis.

Councillor Devon asked if the Committee could write to the Fire Chief on Mull for all the hard work the staff have done over the last couple of days in dealing with hill fires.

5. ROADS RECONSTRUCTION PROGRAMME 2012-15

A report advising Members of the progress being made with regard to the delivery of the overall Roads Reconstruction Programme 2012-15 was considered. The report reviews the works carried out in year 1, 2012-13 and the proposed programme for year 2, 2013-14.

In 2011, the Council decided to increase investment in upgrading its road network following successive poor winters, and subsequently delivered a £7M programme of works which made an immediate and positive impact on the Council's roads network. In February 2012, the Council approved a further £21M investment in roads reconstruction for 2012-15.

Decision

The Committee:-

- Noted the progress of the Roads Reconstruction Programme for 2012-13 and the proposals for 2013-14 within the £21M works; and
- ii. Agreed that the proposals for use of the additional capital funding which will be available to OLI following the Council decision of 21st March would come to the Business Day on 8th May.

(Ref: Report by Head of Roads and Amenity Services dated 28th March 2013, submitted).

6. OBAN CHORD UPDATE

A report updating the Committee on the delivery timescales for the CHORD projects, in particular Oban CHORD, and on the new three year CHORD Consultancy Framework, was considered.

Decision

The Committee:-

- i. Noted the contents of the report;
- ii. Agreed to invite the new CHORD Project Officer to the next Area Committee when they are in post; and
- iii. Agreed to bring a report to the Area Committee after every CHORD Project Board, so that all Members not on the CHORD project Board can be updated.

(Ref: Report by CHORD Project Manager dated 2nd April 2013, submitted).

7. NEW OBAN HIGH SCHOOL

A report setting out the proposed approach and methodology for identifying the preferred site for the location of the new Oban High School (OHS) was considered. The report identifies the approach to long listing of sites and the criteria for short listing and identifying the preferred site(s) to be taken forward for the Council's approval and public consultation. The report also sets out a proposed process for engaging with the public in respect of the preferred site(s).

Decision

The Committee agreed:-

- The option appraisal methodology set out in paragraphs 3.2 to 3.6 of the report, and the attached appendix 1, should be applied, by Council staff, to determine which of the long listed sites, identified in Appendix 1, should be taken forward for public consultation as the preferred sites;
- ii. That the Council should undertake a public consultation in respect of the preferred sites identified in (i), in accordance with the methodology set out in paragraphs 3.7 to 3.14 of the report; the detailed arrangements for the consultation to be delegated to the Executive Director of Community Services in consultation with the Lead Councillor for Education and Lifelong Learning; and
- iii. The processes identified above should be undertaken in accordance with the timescale set out in Appendix 2 of the report.

(Ref: Report by Executive Director of Customer Services dated 10th April 2013, submitted).

8. MARINE ISSUES

A report updating the Committee on the current issues in the Oban, Lorn and the Isles area was considered.

Decision

The Committee:-

- i. Noted the contents of the report;
- ii. Agreed that the Operations Manager would give all Members a copy of the checking criteria for their information; and
- iii. Agreed that the Estates department would bring a further report to the next Area Committee in regards the slipway at Oban Sailing Club.

(Ref: Report by Operations Manager dated 10th April 2013, submitted).

9. PASSENGER ACCESS SYSTEM

A report providing an update on the issues relating to the future replacement of the current Passenger Access System (PAS) at Craignure in line with the report to Council on 21st March 2013, was considered.

Decision

The Committee noted the report.

(Ref: Report by Operations Manager dated 26th March 2013, submitted).

10. GLENFORSA

A report advising the Committee in the reopening of Glenforsa airfield for Easter 2013 was considered.

Decision

The Committee noted the progress detailed within the report in relation to the new operation of Glenforsa airfield.

(Ref: Report by Strategic Transportation Manager dated 10th April 2013, submitted).

Councillor Louise Glen-Lee left the meeting at this point.

11. ARGYLL AND BUTE ADULT PROTECTION COMMITTEE - BIENNIAL

The Committee heard a presentation by the Chair of the Adult Protection Committee on the latest biennial report on Adult Protection.

Decision

The Committee agreed to note the presentation and contents of the report.

(Ref: Argyll and Bute Adult Protection Biennial report 2010-2012, submitted).

12. FAIRTRADE FORTNIGHT

Councillor Robertson updated the Committee on Fairtrade Fortnight. She advised it was a great success and that schools and churches were now involved.

Decision

Noted.

13. AREA SCORECARD

A report presenting the Area Scorecard exceptional performance for financial quarter 3 2012-13 (October to December 2012), was considered.

The Chair welcomed Janice Ritchie, the new Area Children's Manager for Oban, Lorn and the Isles to the meeting to discuss Children and Families Performance. Janice advised that up until the 9th May, there are still ongoing inspections and that all 16 reviews were carried out but not in timescale so therefore that is the reason for it showing red. They also had staffing difficulties but were optimistic that next time these performance indicators will show green.

Decision

The Committee noted the exceptional performance presented on the scorecard.

(Ref: Report by Improvement and Organisational Development Programme Manager dated 10th April, submitted).

Councillor Iain Angus MacDonald left the meeting at this point.

14. THIRD SECTOR GRANTS FOR APPROVAL

Councillor Roddy McCuish, having declared a non financial interest in OASIS, left the meeting and took no part in the discussion of that item.

The Community Development Officer spoke on the recommendations for the award of Third Sector Grants.

Decision

The Committee determined the Third Sector Grants as follows:-

	Third Sector Grants	Project Costs	Grant Awarded
3.1	1st Tobermory Guides/Tobermory Scout Hall	£2,710	£1,016
3.2	Argyll and Bute Youth Forum *	£4,000	£250
3.3	Coisir Ghaidhlig Taigh an Uillt - Taynuilt Gaelic Choir/mixed choir and ladies choir	£600	£135
3.4	Comann Eachdraidh Lios Mor (CELM) The Lismore Historical Society	£11,750	£750

3.5	Craignure Village Hall	£7,937	£1,437		
3.6	Hebridean Whale and Dolphin Trust (HWDT)	£5,300	£2,650		
3.7	Highlands and Islands Music and Dance Festival *	£44,154	£4,000		
On the condition the money is equally spent between the Highlands and Islands Music and Dance Festival and the costs towards developing the capacity of the organisation.					
3.8	Loch Awe Improvement Association	£14,881	Deferred this decision		
3.9	Lorn Agricultural Society *	£11,265	NIL		
3.10	Mull and Iona Schools Pipers	£1,490	£522		
3.11	New Start Oban	£750	£206		
3.12	North Argyll Youth Forum	£13,575	£480 (underwrite)		
3.13	OASIS	£7,000	£1,575		
3.14	Oban Phoenix Cinema	£45,000	Deferred this decision		
3.15	Oban Winter Festival *	£31,100	£4,000		
3.16	Oban Youth Cafe	£4,025	£450		
3.17	Sound of Mull Radio	£5,862	Deferred this decision		
3.18	Tiree Music Festival CIC *	£8,990	£2707		
3.19	Tiree Resource Club	£3,829	£1,233		

^{*} Events and Festivals

(Ref: Report by the Community Development Manager dated 2nd April 2013, submitted).

15. AREA COMMUNITY PLANNING - REVIEW OF COUNCILLOR REPRESENTATION

A report updating the Committee on recent changes which have been made to the attendance of elected Members at Oban, Lorn and the Isles Community Planning meetings was considered.

Decision

The Committee:-

- Noted the update on recent changes to Member's attendance at Community Planning Group meetings and agreed to continue with the present arrangements of Councillors MacDougall and MacDonald attending the meetings along with Councillor McCuish as Area Leader; and
- ii. Agreed to continue to bring the Community Planning Group agenda to the Business Day so Members can decide if their attendance is required at the meeting.

(Ref: Report by Area Governance Manager dated 20th March 2013, submitted).